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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Education
Mequon-Thiensville School District
Mequon, Wisconsin

Report on the Financlal State

Wa have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the busihess-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Mequon-Thiensville School District, ("the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014,
and the related rotes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. '

Menagement's Responsiblilty for the Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financlal statemeénts In actordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this Includes the design,
-Implementation, and maintenénce of internal control relevant to the preparation and falr presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. ' ' '

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibllity is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 'We did not audit the
financial statements of the discretely presented component unit, Mequon-Thiensville Education Foundetion, Inc,
(“the Foundation®). ‘Those statements were audited by other auditors, whose report has been furnished to us, and
our epinion, insofar as it relates o the amounits included for the Foundation, Is based sciely on the report of the
other auditors, We conducted our audit In accordance with auditing standards genherally accapled in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audlts contained In Government Alditing Sfanderds,
Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The financial statements of the' Megiion-Thiensville
Education Foundation, Inc., a discretely presented component.unit of the District, were riot-audited in accordarice
with Government Auditing Standards, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to ‘obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements are free of material misstatemerit.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures In the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, includirig the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the District's preparation and fair presentatjon of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bt riot for
tha purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Agcordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies uged and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the finaricial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
apinions.

Opinlons

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the District as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable; cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note D.7, the District recorded a prior period adjustment in the proprietary funds and the district-
wide financial statements to increase unearned revenue and to decrease net position by $42,744. Qur opinions
are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison
information, the schedule of funding progress and the schedule of employer contributions on pages 35 through 38
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers. it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate. operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited - procedures to the required: supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Ametica, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to ‘supplement the basic financla) statemerits.
Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. who canslders. It to be an essentlal part. of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operatlonal,; economic, or historical context: Our opinion on the basic
financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose. of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the District's basic financial statements. The financial information listed in the table of contents as supplementary
information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards and schedule of state financial assistance are
presented for purposes of addltional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Guidelines
issued by the Wisconsin Department of Administration and are also not a required part of the basic financial
statements.



The supplementary information and schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance
are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themiselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the supplementary information, the schedules of expenditures of federal awards and the schedule of

state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

Report on Summarized Financial Information

We have previously audited the District's 2013 financial statements, and our report dated October 25, 2013,
expressed unmodified opinions on those respective financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented companent unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining
fund information. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year

ended June 30, 2013, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it
has been derived.

Report Issued in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

In accardance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated Ootober 23, 2014, on
our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

S dende. SC

Certifled Public Accountants
Sheboygan, Wisconsin
October 23, 2014
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014
(With summarized financial information as of June 30, 2013)

Mequon-Thiensville
Govermmenta!l | Business-type Totals Education
Activities Activitles 2014 | 2013 Foundation, Inc.
ASSETS
Cash and investments § 4870146 $ 862,346 $ 5722492 § 5907415 § 370,389
Recelvables ) )
Taxes . 8,808,194 - 8,898,194 9,227,496 -
Accounts 45,223 106 45329 145,118 -
Pledges: - - - - 1,927
Duse from other govemments 325,080 9,264 334,344 450,306 -
Prepald itams _ 69,369 - 69,369 - 1,719,
Other pension benefits asset - - - 37,669 .
Capltal assets
Land 301,938 - 301,938 401,938 <
Land Improvements 1,854,073 - 1,854,073 1,808,282 -
Buildings 54,704,466 - 64,704,466 53,629,336 -
Machinery, equipment and textbooks 9,507,120 597,609 10,104,629 9,798,060 8,924
Construction In progress 48,500 - 48,500 184,479 -
Less! Acoumulated depreciation (33,942,708) (460,446)  (34,403,154) (32,816,863) (5.998)
{nterest in net assets
Greater Milwaukee Foundation - - - - 483,041
TOTAL ASSETS 46,681,401 998,779 47,680,180 48,763,236 858,007
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURGES -
Loss:on advance refunding 287,428 - 287,428 349,020 -
LIABILITIES
Short-term notes payable 2,800,000 - 2,800,000 3,250,000 -
Accounts payable 66,852 111,622 178,374 264,133 124,141
Accrued payroll liabilities 768,673 20,793 787,466 713,289 1,605
Accrued interest payable 121,600 * 121,600 146,475 -
Uneamed revenues 5,600 46,361 61,861 4,460 B
Long-term obligations
Due within one yaar 2,626,170 - 2,525,170 2,469,470 -
Due in more than one year 13,397 408 - 13,397,408 15,778,674 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 19,683,203 178,676 19,861,879 22,628,501 125,746
NET POSITION v
Net investmant In capltal assets 21,565,066 137,063 21,702,119 19,836,899 931
Restricted for
Donor intent 22,207 - 22,207 16,093 -
Debt service 139,845 - 139,845 142,135 -
Food service - 292,993 292,993 329,119 -
Foundation activitles - - ‘ - - 279,623
Unrestricted 5,658,518 390,047 5,948,565 6,161,509 451,707
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 27285626 $ 820103 § 28105729 § 26485765 % 732,261

The notes to the baslc financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended Junse 30, 2014

(With summanized financial information for the year ended June 30, 2013)

‘Program Revenues

Operating
Charges for Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions:
Govemmental Activities
Instruction $ 24613158 $ 685,116 $ 2,927,237
Support services 16,633,083 438,357 672,674
Interest and fiscal charges 424,311 - -
Depraciatiori --unallocated 1,640,061 - -
Non-program § 692,550 - = =
Total Gove‘mmental Activities 43,003,172 1,123,473 3,599,911
Business-typa Activitles
Sehoot food sarvice program 1,278,877 1,034,236 279,728
Community service program 760,734 604,168 =
Total Business-type Activities 2,039,611 1,638,404 279,728
Total Primary Govemment 45,042,783 2,661,877 3,879,639
Component unit
Mequon-Thienswville o ‘ o
Educatfon:Fouridation, Ine. $ 347,864 % - $ 426,056
Genersl revénues.
‘Property gxes
State and federal alds not restricted to
~ specificfunctions
Interest and investment eamings
Miscellaheous
Total Genéral Revenues
Charige In riat position
Nat Position - July 1
Prior perlod adjustment

Net Pasition - July 1, restated

Net Positlon - Juna 30

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government Component Unit
Mequon-Thiensville
Govemnmental | Business-type Totals Education:
Activities Activities 2014 | 2013 Foundation, Inc.

$ (21,000,805) $ £ (21,000,805) § (16,948,990) $

(14,522,052) - (14,622,062) {14,004,765) k
(424,311) - (424,811) (822,037) -
(1,640,061) - (1,640061)  (1,617,335) .
(692,569) - 659)  (652,160) -
(38,279,788) - (37,040,287) -
- 35,087 85,087 (47,365) =

- (266,6566) (256,566) (201,690) -

- (221,479) __ (221,479) (249,055) -
(38,279,768) (221,479) 601,267)  (37,289,342) -
. . 3 . 78,192
37,351,583 227,680  31,6791683 87,581,497 -
2,125,671 - - 2425671 2,132,668 5
13,942 1,402 15,344 33,245 54,790
443,807 - 443,807 49,472 .
39,935,003 228982 40163985 39,776,882 64,790
1,665,215 7,503 1,662,718 2,487,540 132,982
25,630,411 865344 26,486,766 23098216 599,279
26,630,411 812,600 26,443,011 23,998,215 599,279

27,285,626 _$

,488,7

732,261




MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2014
(With summarized financlal information as of June 30, 2013)

Other Total
Governmental Governmental Funds
General Funds 2014 | 2013
ASSETS
Cash-and Investments $ 4,608,701 $ 261,445 $ 4,870,146 $ 5,114,388
Recelvables
Taxes 8,898,194 - 8,898,194 9,227,496
Accourits 16,800 28,423 45,223 144,960
Due from ather funds 5,537 - 5,637 95,734
Due from other governments 325,080 - 325,080 441,648
Prepaid itams 69,369 - 69,369 -
TOTAL ASSETS ¢ 13923681 $ 289.868 § 14,213,649 §_ 16,024,126
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabllities
Short-term fiotes payable $ 2,800,000 §$ - $ 2,800,000 § 3,250,000
Accounts payable 66,173 679 66,852 135,103
Accrued payroll liabilities 766,673 - 766,673 697,900
Accrued interest payable 21,700 - 21,700 24,375
Due to otherfunds - 5,537 5,537 95,734
Unearned revenues 5,600 - 5,500 4,460
Total Liabilities 3,660,046 6,216 3,666,262 4,207,572
Fund Balarices
Nonspendable
Prepald flems 69,369 - 69,369 -
Restricted
Doror infent - 22,207 22,207 16,093
Retirement of long-term debt - 261,445 261,445 288,610
Committed
Capital projects - - - 775,000
Unassigned 10,194,266 - 10,194,266 9,736,851
Total Fund Balances 10,263,635 283,652 10,547,287 10,816,554
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND ) o _ _ o
FUND BALANCES $ 13923681 $ 280868 $ 14213549 § 15.024.126

jo Statemient of Net Position

Total Fund Balances frof previous page

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:

Capital assats used-in govemmental activities arg not financlal:resources and
therefore ara not reported in the funds.

Some liabllities, including bonds and notes payable, are not due and payable
in the current perfod and lherefore are nol reported in (he funds.
Bonds 'and notes payabla
Bond premiim
Deferred outflaws - loss on advance refunding
Other post-employment beneflts obligation
Other pension benefits obligation
Vested unused employee berefits
Accrued interest payable
Net Position of Governmental Actlvities as Reported on the
Statement of Net Position (see page 4)

The noles to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this stalement.

2014 | 2013 |

$ 10547287 $ 10,816,554
32,473,389 32,797,412
(11,935,000)  (14,230,000)
(521,180) (632,800)
287,428 349,020
(3,358,994) (3,308,364)
(35,192) 37,669
(72,262) (76.980)
(99,800) (122,100)

$ 27285626 $  25630.411

27,285,626 25,630,411



MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Mequon, Wisconsin

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

{With summarized financial information for the year ended June 30, 2013)

Revenues
Property taxes
Other local sources
Interdistrict sources
Intermediate sources
State sources
Federal sources
Other sources
Total Revenues

Expenditures

Instruction
Regular instruction
Vocational instruction
Special education instruction
Ofther Instruction
Total Instruction

Support Services
Pupil services
Instructional staff services
General administration services
School administration services
Business services
Operation and maintenance of plant
Pupil transportation services
Central services
Insurance
Other support services
Tota! Support Services

Debt Service

Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Debt Service

Non-program
General tuition payments
Speclal education tuition payments
Other non-program
Indirect costs
Total Non-program

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Long-term debt Issued
Bond premium
Repayment to curent note holder
Sdle of capital assels
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change In Fund Balances
Fund Balances - July 1

Fund Balances - June 30

(Continued)

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Other Total

Governmental Governmental Funds

General Funds 2014 | 2013
$ 34983027 $ 2368556 $ 37,351,583 § 37,333,917
1,139,346 262,585 1,401,931 1,573,048
373,437 - 373,437 335,600
10,662 . 10,662 1,121
4,380,082 - 4,380,082 4,361,905
951,154 - 051,154 1,089,328
76,479 76,479 52,436
AT.914,187 2631141 44545378 44,757,355
16,856,049 113,720 16,970,739 16,025,390
634,429 634,429 679,789
4,884,747 s 4,884,747 5,055,596
130,389 49,095 2,179,484 2,079,632
4.524 8,514 162,885 24,669,399 24,740,407
2,816,053 1,121 2,816,174 2,343,273
1,723,781 54,088 1,777,869 2,149,351
679,305 . 679,306 542,157
2,225,318 37,498 2,262,816 2,198,025
500,734 - 500,734 535,546
5,215,931 - 5,215,931 4,084,517
2,037,744 - 2,037,744 2,034,010
1,206,319 1,206,319 927,308
277,215 < 277,215 291,154
- - - 3_zrg,gw
16,681,400 92,707 16,774,107 15,377,554
. 2,295,000 2,285,000 2,120,000
18,721 366,198 384,919 855,445
18,72 2,661,198 3,679,919 2,975,445
439,714 - 439,714 311,815
250,549 . 250,549 311,374
- - - 28,971
2,206 - 2,296 .
662,550 — — 652,160
41,899,104 2,016,780 M.ﬁﬁﬁ_. 43,745,566
14,993 (285,649) (270,656) 1,011,789
- - - 12,640,000
& 2 - 600,939
. 8 . (18,140,000)
1,389 . 1,389 1,451
- 264,598 264,508 343,802
(264,598) . (264,598) (343,802)
{263,209) 264,598 1,389 102,390
(248,216) (21,051) (269,267) 1,114,179
10,511,851 304,703 10,816,554 9,702,375
10,26 652 10,547,287 $ 10,816,554




MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)

Governmenital Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(With summarized financial information for the year ended June 30, 2013)

Reconciliation to the Statement of Activities
Net Change in Fund Balances from previous page

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Govemmental funds report capltal assets purchased as expenditures.
However, In the statement of activitles the cost of those assets is allocated
overtheir estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Gapital assets purchased in governmental fund statements $ 1,320,230

2014

o

2013 |

Depreciation expense reported in the statement of activities (1 ,640,061)

Amount by which depreciation is greater than capital outlay

In governimental funds the entire proceeds, if any, from the disposal
of capital essets is reporied as an other financing source. In the
statement of activitles only the gain or loss on the disposal is reported.

Proceeds from the disposition of capital assets as reported on the
govemmental funds operating statement

Loss on disposition reported on the statement of activities $
Cost of @ssets disposed of

Certain employee benefits are reported in the governmental funds
when amourits are paid. The statement of activities reports the
value of benefits earned during the year. The accrual of these
benefits decreased (Increased) by:

‘Othier post-employment benefits (OPEB)

Othef pensfons benefits obligation (asset)

Vested unused employee benefits

Loss.on advance refunding is reported In the governmental funds as an
other financing use, but is deferred and amortized aver the life of the new bonds
in the statement of activities, The amount of current year amortization is:

Repayment of principal on long-term debt is reported in the goverhmental
funds as an expenditure, but Is reparted as a reduction in long-term

debt in the statement of net position and does not affect the statement of
activities. The amount of long-term debt principal payments:

Interest payments.on outstanding debt are reported In the governmental
funds as an expenditure when paid. In the statement of activities Interest
is reported as it accrues.

Premiumis received on debt issuances are reported in the governmental funds
as other financing sources, but are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
In the stalement of actlvities.
Change [n Net Posltion of Governmental Activities as Reported on the
Statement of Activities (seé pages 5 - 6)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

(269,267)

(319,831)

(4,192)

(50,630)
(72,861)
4,718

(61,592)

2,295,000

22,200

111,670

$

1,114,179

(973,489)

(37,364)

287,796
(58,656)
50,720

(61,592)

2,620,000

95,000

(529,330)

5

1,655,215

$

2,507,264




(With summarized financial information as of June 30, 2013)

ASSETS
‘Cash and investments
Accaunts recelvable
Dua from other governmants
Captitsl assets
Machinery and equipment
Less: Accumulated depreciation

TOTAL ABBETS

LABILITTES
Aocrugd payrol llabllites
Uneamed revenues
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET PQS(ITION
Nel Investment in capital assets
Restricted for food service
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Statement of Net Posilion
Non-Msjor Proprietary Funds

June 30,

2014

Total

Food Community | Non-Major Proprietary Funds

Service Service 2014 2013
$ 435207 § 417939 § 852,346 $ 883,027
106 4 106 158
8,264 . 9,264 8,758
597,509 597,509 574,071
(460,446) (460,446) (466,251)
861,840 417489 908,778 999,763
105,223 8,208 111,522 129,030
- 20,793 20,793 16,389
46,361 - 46,361 -
161,684 27,092 178,676 144,419
137,063 = 137,063 107,820
292,993 - 202.093 328,119
- 380,047 390,047 418,405
8 430056 § 300047 & 820103 $  B55344

The notas to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this stafement.
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Non-Major Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
(With summartzed financial Information for the year ended June 30, 2013)

Operating Revenuas
Food sales and user charges
State dources
Federal sources.
Total Operating Reventies

Operating Expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Other
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)
Non-Opemating Revenues (Expenses)
Lass on dispasal of capital assets: _
Tolal Non-Operating Revenues (Expenises)
Change in Nat Position

Net Pasltion - July 1
Prior Period Adjustment:

Net Pesition - July 1, restated

Net Posliion - June 30

Total

Food Community | Non-Major Proprietary Funds

Service Service 2014 | 2013
$ 1034236 $ 504,168 $ 1538404 § 1,695.354
11,047 - 11,947 13,791
267,781 E 267,781 258,401
1,313,964 504,168 1,818,132 1,867,646
. 410,443 410,443 369,214
1,137,410 245,600 1,383,010 1,610,724
95,785 36,454 132,239 126,128
26,187 68,237 04,424 79,605
19,495 - 19,495 39,511
1,278,877 760,734 2,039,611 2,115,182
35,087 (256,566) (221,479) (247 636)
. 227,580 227,680 227,580
774 828 4,402 1,751
. " - (1,419)
774 228,208 228,082 227,912
35,861 (28,358) 7,603 (19,724)
436,939 418,405 855,344 875,068
(42,744) . (42,744) -
354,188 418,406 812,800 8765.068
$ 430.(_)58 8 39Q,047 i 820,103 § 825'!344

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Statement of Cash Flows
Non-Major Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(With summarized financlal information for the year ended June 30, 2013)

Cash Flows from Opaeratirig Activities
Cash recelved from user charges
Cash received from other govemment payments
Cash payments to employees
Cash payments to suppllers
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activity
Cash recelved from properly taxes

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Fitiancing Activity
Acquisition of capltal assets

Cash Flows from Investing Activity
Interest received

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - July 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents - June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Income {Loss) ta Net Cash
Provided by (Used for} Operating Activities:
Operating Income {loss)
Adjustments to teconclle operating iricome- (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities.
Depreciation
Changes In gssats and liabliities
Accotmts receivable _
Due from other govemments
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll liabilities
Other liabilities

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Actlvities

Noncash Activitles:
Commodlties Received From
U.S. Department of Agriculture

Total

Food Community | Non-Major Proprietary Funds

Service Service 2014 | 2013
$ 1034288 $ 504,168 $ 1,538,456 $ 1,505,274
200,257 . 200,257 190,499
= (405,039) (405,039) (362,836)
(1,187,385) (357.214)  (1,544,599)  (1,802,794)
47,160 (258,085) (210,925) (179,857)
. 227,580 227,580 227,580
(48,738) - (48,738) (62,736)
774 628 1,402 1,751
(804) (29,877) (30,681) (13,262)
438,011 447,016 883,027 806,289.
$§ 435207 § 417139 $ 852,346 § 888,097
$ 35087 § (256566) $ (221,479) $§  (247,636)
19,495 - 19,495 39,511
52 s 52 (80)
(606) = (506) (4,531)
(10,585) (6,923) (17,508) 36,501
- 5,404 5,404 (3,622)
3,617 . 3,617 -
547160 § (258085) §  (210.926) § (179.857)
$ 78965 § - $ 78,965 $ 77,162

The notes to the baslc financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Mequon, Wisconsin
Statement of Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2014

(With summarized financial information as of June 30, 2013)

Private Employee Total
Purpose Benefit Agency Fiduciary Funds
Trust Fund | Trust Fund Fund 2014 | 2013
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 12,042 §& 872,020 $§ 153413 § 1,037,476 $ 829,584
Interest recelvable - - - - 5
TOTAL ASSETS 12,042 872,020 153,413 1,037,475 829,589
LIABILITIES
Due to student organizations - - 153,413 153,413 146,721
NET POSITION
Restricted for scholarships 12,042 - - 12,042 12,001
Restricted for other post emplayment
benefits - 872,020 - 872,020 670,867
$ 12042 § 872020 § - § 884062 § 682,868

The notes to tha baslc financlal statements are an integral part of thig staternent.
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRIGT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Statement of Changes in Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
(With summarized financial information for the year ended June 30, 2013)

Private Employee ~ Total
Purpose _ Benefit Pduglary Funds
Trust Fund . | Trust Fund 2014 | 23
ADBITIONS
-Othier-ipnal sources 3 I 1,163 § 1,194 & 734
Qthar - 1,291,516 1,201,516 1,669,420
Totsl Additions 41 1,202669 1,292,710 1,670,151
QEDUCTIONS
“Truat fund disbursements = 1,091,518 1,091,616 1,279,079
Ohwnge tn Nat PosfBon 4 B W IoR
Net Posttion - July 1 19,661 570,887 ORD BRN . 26 706
Net Posttion - June 30 $ 12042 § 872020 § 884062 $ 652.868

The notes te the basio finenals! stataments.are an ntegml:pet of s shefmssent,
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the Mequon-Thiensville School District ("the District"), Mequon, Wisconsin,
have been. prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The significant accounting principles and policies utilized by the District are described below:

1.

Reporting Entity
The District Is organized as a common school district. The Distriot, governed by a seven-member

elected school board, operates grades K through 12 and is' comprised of all or parts of three taxing
districts.

In accordance with GAAP, the baslc financial statements are required to include the District (the primary
government) and any separate component units that have a significant operational or financial
relationship with the District. The component unit discussed below s included in the basic financiat
statements in: accordance with standards established. by GASB Statement No. 61 because of the
significance of its relationship with the Disfrict.

The component unit column in:the district-wide financlal statements provides the financial data for the
Mequon:-Thiensville Education Foundation, Inc. The component unit is reported in a separate column to
emphasize that it is legally separate from the District.

The Mequon-Thiensville Education Foundation, Inc.  exists for the purpose -of raising money and
generating conttibutions from the members of the Mequan-Thiensville cémmunity to enhance: student
educational Opportunltles The. Mequon—Thlensvulie Education' Foundation, [nc. is reported as a
gomponent unit because it raises and holds economic resources almost entirely. for the direct benefit. of
the District or its constituents: -Complete financial statements for the component unit can be obtained
from the Mequon-Thiensville Education Foundation, Inc., P.O. Box 514, Mequon; WI 53092,

District-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Thie district-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities)
réport information on all of the nonfducnary activities of the District and its component unit. For the most
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these:statements. - Governmental activities,

‘which primarily are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from

business-type activitles, which rely to a slgnif“cant extent on fees and charges for servicas. Likewise,
the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate: component units whose
resources are almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary gevernment or Its constituents.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are cleady identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program.revenues include 1) charges to customers or:applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or pnwleges provided by a given function or segment and
2) grants and contributions that are restricted to. meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included: -among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenies.

Separate financial statemerits are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the district-wide financial statements. Governmental
funds include general, special revenue, debt service and capital projects funds. Proprietary funds
include enterprise funds. The District has no internal service funds. Major individual governmental
funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The District reports the following major governmiental fund:
GENERAL FUND

This is the District's main operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those accounted for in another fund.

The District reports the following rionmajor goverrimental funds:
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Thisfund Is used to account for donations that can be used for distriat operations. Significant revenue

sources of this furid inglude gifts and donations.
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

These funds account for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on
fong-term general obligation debt of governmental funds,

The District reports no major proprietary funds. The District uses enterprise funds to account for
transactions of the Food Service: Fund and the Community Service Fund.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

“The District accounts for resources legally held in trust for scholarship awards as a private-purposs trust
fund: Only.earnings on the invested resources may be used to support the scholarships.

The District accounts for resaurces held in trust for farmally established employee benefit plans as an
employee benefit trust fund.

The District accounts for assets held as an agent for various student and parent organizations in an
agency fund.

. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The district-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrusl basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduclary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when the transaction occurs and expenses are recorded when a liability is
ineurred, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met:

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the cumrent financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within
the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current perlod. For this purpose, the
District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a llabillty is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the fiscal year for which taxes have been levied, Tuition,
grants, fees and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to
accrual and have been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when the cash Is received by the District.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the district-wide financial
statements,

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers: or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources-are reported as generat revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generalty result from providirig services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Enterprise funds are @ lype of
proprietary fund. The principal operating revenues of the District's enlerprise funds are charges to
customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds Include the cost of services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on'¢apital assets. - All revenues and expenses not meeting
this deflnition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and urirestricted resources ate available for use, # Is the District's poliey to Use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, ‘as they are needed.

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Fund Balance:

a. Cash and Investments

Cash and investments are combined in the financial statements. Cash deposits consist of demand
and time deposits with financial institutions and are carried at cost. Invéstments are stated at falr
value. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged In a'current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced. or liquidatian sale. For purpases of the
statement of cash flows, all cash deposits and highly llquid investments (including restricted assets)
with & maturity of three months or less from date of acquisition are considered ta be cash
equivalents.

b. Accounts Recelvable
Accounts recelvable are recorded at gross amount with uncollectible amounts recognized under the
direct write-off method. No aliowance for uncollectible accounts: has been provided since it is
believed that the amount of such allowance would not be material to the basic financial statements.

¢ Intedund Receivables and Payables
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “due from other
funds” and "due to other funds” in the fund financial statements.

The amount reported on the statement of net position for internal balances represents the residual
balance outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities.

17



MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

d.

Prepaid Items P , .
Paymants made ta.vendors that will benefit perlods beyond the end of the ourrent fiscal year are
recarded as prepaid items.: ‘

Prepald items of governmental funds in the fund financial statements are offset by nonspendable
fund balance to Indicate that they do not represerit spendable available finanolal resources.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, whlch Include property, machinery and equipment assets, are reported in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type acfivities or companent unit columns in the
district-wide financlal statements. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial,
individual cost of $1,000 or higher and an estimated useful life In excess of one year. The District
also capitalizes textbooks and library books with an estimated useful life in excess of one year. The
individual cost threshold of $1,000 doés not apply to these types of assels. Capital assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets ara recorded at estimated fair valua at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that. do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extand asset lives.are not capitalized.

Capltal assets of the Distriot ate depreslated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful livas; |

| Governmentsl | Busingss-type | Component
Adtivities Activities Unit
Years

Assets
Land improvements 20 - -
Buildings 25-50 “ -
Machinery, egulpment and

textbaoks 5-20 10 5-7
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Megquon, Wisconsin
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f.

Compensated Absences

Vacation

The District's policy allows employees to earn varying amounts of vacation pay for each year
employed which accumulates and vests to the employees when earned and must be used within
the following year. Upon retirement or termination of employment, the employee is entitled to
payment of earned vacalion.

Sick

The District's policy does not allow accumulated sick pay benefits to vest for teachers and
administrators. For these employee groups, unused accumulated employee sick pay is forfeited
upon retirement or termination of employment.

The District's policy allows educatlonal support staff to earn varying amounts of sick pay for each
year employed, accumulating to varying maximum amounts. Upon retirement or termination of
employment, educational support staff are entitled to apply the vested amounts towards the cost of
group health insurance coverage. The benefits can only be used for the payment of health
insurance premiums on behalf of retired employees.

All vacation and sick leave is dccrued when incurred in the district-wide financial statements. A
liability for this amount is reported in the governmental funds in the fund financial statements only if
they have matured, for example as a result of employee resighations and retirements. The
compensated absences liability is calculated based on the pay or salary rates in effect at June 30,
2014,

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expensefexpenditure) until then. The District only has
one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the deferred charge on refunding reported
in the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred charge on refunding results from the
difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred
and amortized over the sharter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) untll that time. The District has no items that qualify
for reporting in this category.
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Jurne 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h.

Long-Term Obligations

In the district-wide financial statements, and proprietary funds in the fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of net position. Bond premiums
and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bond. Issuance costs are expensed
during the current period. '

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bérid premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs; durlng the current perlod. The face amount of debt. issued is

“reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on dw are reported as other

financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are f ' as other financing usges.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as

-debl service expenditures.

Fund. Equity/Net Position
GOVERNMENTAL FUND. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categaries based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The following classifications
desuribe the relative strength of the spending constralnts placed on the purposes for which
resources can be used:

* Nonspendable fund balance - Amounts that are not in spendable form (such as Inventory,
prepaid tems,; orlong-term receivables) or are legally.or contractually required to remain intact.

¢ Restricted fund balance - Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes by external parties
(such as grantor or bondholders), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

» Cammitted fund balance - Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes by action of the
Board of Education. These constraints can only he rémaved: or changed by the Board of
Education using the same action that was used fo create them.

* Assigned fund balance - Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes by actiort of District
management. Residual amounts in any governmental fuiid; other than the General Fund, are
also reported as assigned,

* Unassigned fund balance - Amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive ynassigned

amounts are only reported In the General Fund.

The District has not adopted a fund balance spend down policy regarding the order in which fund
balance will be utilized. When a policy does not specify the spend down policy, GASB Statement
No. 54 indlcates that restricted funds would be spent first, followed by committed funds, and then
assigned funds. Unassigned funds would be spent last.
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Juhe 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

DISTRICT-WIDE AND PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In the disfrict-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, net position s displayed In three
conipanents:

o Net.investment in caplital assets - Amount of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
less outstanding balances of any. borids, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that -are
attnbutable to the acquisition, cornsttuction, or improvement of those assets.

» Restricted net position - Amidunt of nel position that is subject to restrictions that are impased by
a)external groups, such as-creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other
govemments or b) law through constifutional provisions or enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted net position - Net position that Is neither tlassified as restricted nor as net
investment in capital assets.

5. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
ameotints reported in the financial statements and accompanying noles. - Actual results could differ from

those estimates.

Tne basw ﬂnaneual statements include certain prior-year summarized information in total but not at the
level of detail required. for a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Acuoordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the District's financial statements for
the year ended Jiune 30, 2013, from which the summarized information was derived.

NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP AND COMPLIANCE

1.

Defieit Fund Equity _
No funds had deficlt fund equity as of Jine 30, 2014.
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Notes lo Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

1.

Cash and Investments

The debt service funds and employee benefit trust fund accounit for their transactions through separate
and distinict bank and investment accounts as required by Wisconsin Statutes, In addition, the agency
fund and ptivate-purpose frust fund use ‘separate and distinct accounts. All other funds share in
common bark and investment accounts. ' S

in,veazed cash consists of deposits and investments that are restricted by Wiscansin Statutes to the
following: '

Time deposits; repurchase agreements; securities issued by federal, state and local
governmental entities; statutorlly authorized commercial paper and corporate securities;
and the Wisconsin logal government investment pool. Investmerits In the private-purpose
trust fund and employee benefit trust fund may be invested in other types of investments as
authorized inder Wisconsin Statute 881.01, “Uniform Prudent Jnvestor Act”,

The carrying amount of the District's cash and investments totaled $6,769,967 on June 30, 2014 as
summarized below: '

Primary govemment:
Deposits with financlal institutions $ 6,549,931
Investment \
Wiscansin Investment Series Cooperative 210,036
$ 6,759,967
Component unit:
Depasits with financlal institutions $ 370,389
Reconciliation to the basic financial statements:
District-wide Statement of Net Position
Cash and Investments $ 5722492
Flduclary funds Statement of Net Position
Private-purpose trust fund 12,042
Employee hensfit trust fund 872,020
Agency fund 163,413
§ 6!729!967

Deposits and investments of the District are subject to varlous risks. Presented below is a discussion of
the specific risks and the District's policy related to the risk.
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES CN ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a
government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of another party. Wisconsin Statutes require repurchase agreements to be fully
collateralized by bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government or its
instrumentalities. The District does not have an additional custodial credit risk policy.

Deposits with financial institutions within the State of Wisconsin are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) in the amount of $250,000 for time and savings deposits and $250,000
for the combined amount of interest-bearing and honinterest-bearing demand deposit accounts per
official custodian per insured depository institution. Deposits with financial institutions located outside
the State of Wisconsin are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for all deposit accounts per
official custodian per depository institution. Also, the State of Wisconsin has a State Guarantee Fund
which provides a maximum of $400,000 per public depository above the amount provided by an agency
of the U.S. Government. However, due to the relatively small size of the State Guarantee Fund in
relation to the Fund's total coverage, total recovery of insured losses may not be available.

As of June 30, 2014, $4,655,866 of the District's deposits with financial institutions were Iin excess of
federal and state depository insurance limits. The entire amount was collateralized with securities held
by the pledging financial institution or its trust department or agent but not in the District's name.

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an Investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. Wisconsin Statutes fimit investments in securities to the top two ratings assigned by
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The District does not have an additional credit risk
policy. Presented below is the actual rating as of year-end for each investment type.

Exempt
From Not
Investment Type Amount Disclosure AAA Aa Rated
wiscC
Cash Management Series $ 210,036 3 - $ 210,036 % - $ -

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any
one isster. The District does not have investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Securities, mutual
funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total District investments.
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MEGQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value to changes in market interest rates. The District does not have a formal investment policy that

limits investment malurities as a means of meanaging its exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing interest rates.

Information about the sensitivity of the fajr values of the District's investments to market Interest rate
fluctuations Is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District's investments by

maturity:
Remaining Maturity (in Months)
12Months | 18lo24 25 to 60 More Than
Investmeht Type Amount. orless Months Months 60 Months
WISC ;
Cash Management Sedes . 21 0,036 s & £ & i

The District has investmients In the Wisconsin Investiment Series Cooperative (WISC) of $210,036 at
year end invested in the Cash Management Series. The Cash Management Series has no minimum
investment period, allows check writing privileges, and the average dollar weighted maturity is ninety
(90) days or less.

WISC Is organized by and dperaled exclusively for Wisconsin public schools, technical colleges, and
municipal enfities. WISC is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but operates
under Wisconsin intergovernmental Coop n Statute, Wisconsin Statutes, Section 66.0301. WISC
is governed by the Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative Commission in accordance with the terms
of the Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement. WISC invests District funds in accordance with
Wisconsin law. WISC investments are valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

2.

Property Taxes
The aggregate District tax.levy is apportioned and certified in November of the current fiscal year for

collection to comprising municipahtles based on the immediate past October 1 full or "equalized” taxable
property values. As permitted by a collecting municipality's ordinance, taxes must be paid-in full or in
two or more installments with the first installment payable the subsequent January 31 and a final
payment no later than the following July 31, On or before January 15, and by the 20th of each
subsequent month thereafter, the District is paid by the collecting municipalities its proportionate share
of tax collections receivéd throtigh the last day of the preceding month. On or before August 20, the
county treasurer makes full setﬂemenl to the District for any remaining balance.

Property taxes are recognized as revenue In the fiscal year levied as they are considered due as of

January 1, the date from which interest and penalties accrue for non-payment of a scheduled

Jinstaliment, and full reoelpt of lhe entire levy Is assured within’ slxty days of fiscal year end, meetirig the

availability -criteria necessary for property tax revenue recognition by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.of Amerlca.

Capital Assets ‘
Capital asset activity for'the year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
_ Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Constructlon in progress. $ 184479 § 48500 $ 184479 $ 48,500
Land 301,938 ~ - 301,938
Total capital assets, not being
depreciated 486,417 48,500 184,479 350,438
Capital assets, being depréciated:
Land improvements 1,808,282 45,791 - 1,854,073
Buildings 53,629,336 1,075,130 - 54,704,466
Machinery, equipmentand textbooks 9,228,989 335,288 52,157 9,507,120
Subtotals 64,661 .607 1,456,209 52,157 66,065,659
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 1,361,638 63,939 - 1,425,477
Bulldings 23,749,022 1,027,137 - 24,776,159
Machinery, equipment and textbooks 7,240,052 548,985 47 965 7,741,072
Subiotals 32,350,612 1,640,061 47,965 33,942,708
Total capitat-assets, belng depreciated, net 32,310,995 {183,852) 4192  32,122.951
Govermmental activities capital assets, net $ 32797412 § (135352) § 188,671 32,473,389
Less related long-term debt outstanding 10,908,333
Net investment in capital assets $ 21,565,056
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NOTE C.- DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type activities:
Capital assets, being depreciated: . L B
Machinery and equipment $ 674071 48,738 $ . 25300 $ 597,609
Less accumulated depreciation for;
Machinery and' equipment 466,261 18,495 25,300 460,446

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 107,820 29,243 = . 137,063
Buslness-type aclivities capital assets, net ! 44

Component unlt:
Capital assets, being depreciated: o e
Machinery end equipment $ 5993 § 831 § - $ 8,924
Less accumulated depreciation for;
Machinery and equipment _ 5,736 257 W 5,993
Total capltal assets, being deprecisted, net 257 674 i 931
Corriponent unit capital assets, net 3 257§ 674§ R S 1

Depreclation expense was charged to functions of the District as follows:

Governmental activities

Unallocated _$ 1.640.061
Business-typa activities

Food service $ 19.495

Tha District's capital assets ars shared by many governnental functions. Accordingly, It was not
consgidered practical to allocate depreciation expense.

-
B

nleriunid Recelvables, Pe gs @ oIS
Interfund receivables and payables betweer individual funds of the Distriet as-of June 30, 2014 are

detalled below:

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables

Temporary Cash Advances to Flnance Operating Cash
Deficits of Other Funds V
General $ 5537 $ -
Special Revenue Fund
Special Ravenuse Trust 5,637

Totals $ 5537 % 5,537

The purpose of these interfunds is to account for each funds share of cash and investments held in the
general fund.

o
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NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Interfarid transfers for the year ended June 30, 2014 were as follows:

Transfer to:
Non-
Referendum
Debt Service

Transfers from:
General Fund $ 264,598

Transfers ‘are used to: 1) move unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various
_programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorlzations; 2) mave reverues
from the fund that is required to collect.them to the fund that is required or-allowed to expend them; and
3) move recelpts restricted to or allowed for debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the
debt service funds as debt service payments become due,

5. Short-Term Debt , v
The District issues tax anticipation notes in advance of property tax collections. Short-term debt activity

for the year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows:

Beginning , Ending
Balance Issued. Redeemed Balance

Description
Oppenhelmer & Co., tax anticipation notes

Issued 10/3/12, principal plus interest

due 9/4/13, accruing interest at 1.0% $ 3,250,000 $ - $ 3,250,000 $ -
Quarles & Brady LLP, tax anticipation notes

issued.9/25/2013, principal plus interest

due 2/4/2014, accruing Interest at 1.0% - 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
Quarlés & Brady LLP, tax anticipation notes

issued 9/25/2013, principal plus. interest _

due 9/4/2014, aceruing interest at 1. 0% - 2,800,000 - 2,800,000
Tax anticipation notes $ 3,250,000, § 5,800,000 6,250,000 2,800,000

Interest paid on short-term debt for the year totaled $18,721.

6. Leases
The District feases various equipment under the terms of long-term operating lease agreements.

Following is a schedule, by years, of future minimum rental payments required under long-term
operating leasa agreements:

| Year Ending June 30, | Amount |
2015 3 139,000
2016 50,000
2017 49,000
2018 201000

Total Minimum Payments Required _$ 258,000

Rent expense under all operating leases for the year ended June 30, 2014 amounted to $146,015.
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NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

7. “Long-Term Obligations
The following is @ summary of changes in long-term obligations of the District for the year ended June

30, 2014:
Outstanding Outstanding | Due Within
7/1113 Issuad Ratired 6/30/14 One Year
Govérnmaental actlvities:
Genaral Obligation Debt
Barids $ 14,230,000 § - $ 2,205,000 $11935000 $ 2,355,000
Vested unused employee benefits 76,980 58,570 63,288 72,262 68,500
Ofher post-employmeant benefits 3,308,364 1,377,338 1,291,516 3,384,186 -
Bond premjum 632,800 - 111,670 521,180 111,670
Govammantal activittes .
Long-{érm obligetions $18248.144 § 1435008 § 3761474 § 15922678 § 2525170

Taotal Interest paid during the year on long-term debt totaled $366,198.

G | Obligation
General obligation debt currently outstanding Is detalled as follows;

Bonda
$2.,470,000 issued 8/9/10; $215,000 to $265,000 due-annually through 2020;
intarest 2.30% to-4.00% ' $ 1,400,000
$12,640,000 issued 12/3/12; $1,610,000t0 $2,310 000 due annually through 2019;
interest 2.00% to 3.00% ' ' '

Total Outstanding General Obligation Debt

Annual principal and Interest maturities of the outstanding general obligation debt-of $11,035,000 on June
30; 2014 ars detailed below:

“Year Ended

June 30 Principal Intgiest Total

2015 $ 2355000 $ 299,820 § 2,854,820
2018 2,430,000 230,676 2,660,675
2017 2,495,000 158,435 2,653,435
2018 2,645,000 106,890 2,660,890
2019 1,856,000 51,466 1,906,465
2020 255,000 10,200 265,200

$11,935000 $ _ 856,485 $ 12,791,485

For the governmental activities, the other long-term llabllitles are generally liquidated by the general
fund.
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NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Legal Margin for New Debt _
The District's legal margin for creation of additional general obligation debt on June 30, 2014 was
$411,568,714 as follows:

Equalized valuation of the District $ 4,233,921,781
Statutory limitation percentage {x) 10%
General obligation debt limitation, per Section 67.03 of the

Wisconsin Statutes 423,392,178

Total outstanding general obligation debt applicable to debt limitation $ 11,935,000
Less: Amounts available for financing general obligation debt

Debt service funds (1) 111,536
Net outstanding general obligation debt applicable to debt limitation 11,823,464
L egal Margin for New Debt $ 411,568,714

(1) - Debt service funds, less $149,909 of interest payments due in 2014.

NOTE D - OTHER INFORMATION

1.

Retirement Commitments

All ‘eliglble: District employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS), a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer, defined benefit, public employee retirement system. All employees initially enployed
by a participating WRS employer prior to July 1, 2011, expected to work at least 600 hours a year (440
houts for teachers and school district educatlonal support employees) and expected to be employed for
at least one year from employee's date of hire, are eligible to participate in the WRS. All employees
initially employed by a participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and expected to work at
least 1200 hours a year (880 hours for teachers and school district educational support employees) and
expected ta be employed for at least one year from employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in
the WRS. Employees hired to work nine or ten months per year, (e.g. teachers contracts), but expected
to return year after year are considered to have met the one-year requirement.

Effective the first day of the first pay period on or after June 29, 2011, the employee required
contribution was changed to one-half of the actuarially determined contribution rate for employees in the
General Employment category, including Teachers, and Executives and Elected Officials. Required
contributions for protective employees are the same rate as general employees. Employers are
required to contribute the remainder of the actuarially determined contribution rate. The employer may
not pay the employee required contribution unless provided for by an existing collective bargaining
agreement. Contribution rates are as follows:

2013 2014
Employee Employer Employee Employer,
General (Including Teachers) 6.65% 6.65% 7.0% 7.0%
Executives & Elected Officials - 7.0% 7.0% 7.76% 7.75%
Protective with Social Security 6.65% 9.75% 7.0% 10.1%
Protective without Social Security  6.65% 12.35% 7.0% 13.7%
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NOTE D - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

The payroll for District employees covered by the WRS for the year ended June 30, 2014 was
$21,262,109; the employer's total payroll was $23,022,726. The total required contribution for the year
ended June 30, 2014 was $2,922,220, which consisted of $1,461,110 or 6.65% of covered payroll from
the employer for July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 and 7.00% of payroll from the employer for
January 1,-2014 through Junie30, 2014, and $1,461,110, or 6.65% of payroll from employees for July 1,
2013 through December 31, 2013 and 7.00% of payroll from the employees for January 1, 2014 through
June 30, 2014. Total contributions for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $2,690,014 and
$2,538,379, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

Employees who refire at or after age 65 (62 for elected officials and 54 for protective occupation
employees with less than 26 years of service, 53 for protestive occupation employees with more than
25 years of service) are enfiled fo receive a retirement benefit. Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for
e ocoupation employees) and receive actuarially reduced benefits. The factors influencing the
efit are: (1) final average earnings; (2) years of oreditable service, and (3) a formula factor. A final
average earnings is the average of the employee’s three highest years' eamings. Employees
terminating covered employment and submitting application before becoming eligible for a retirement
benefit may withdraw their contributions and, by deing so, forfeit all rights to any subsequent benefit.
For employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990 and no longer actively employed on
or after April 24, 1998, creditable setvice in each of five years is required for eligibility for a retirement
annuity. Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24, 1998 and prior to July 1, 2011 are
immediately vested. Partisiparits who Initially became WRS eligible on or after July 1, 2011 must have
five years of creditable service to be vested.

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees. Eligibility and the amount of all
benefits are determined under Chapter 40 of Wisconsin Statutes. ’

The WRS issues ‘an annual financlal report that may be obtained by writing to the Department of
Employee Trust Funds, P.Q. Box 7931, Madison, Wl 63707-7931.

2. Other Post-Employment _
The District has established the Mequon-Thiensville Post-Employee Benefits Trust (the *Plan’) which
provides eligible employees and former employees of the District (the *Participants”) health, dental and
life insurance benefits. The Plan is reported as a fiduclary fund of the District and the significant
accounting policies of the Plan are consistent with the District's significant accounting policies discussed
in Note A. The Plan financlal statements-are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Plan Description - The Plan i a single-employer defined benefit postemployment health, dental and life
insurance plan that covers retired employees of the District. Eligible retired employees have access to
group medical coverage through the Distriet's group plans. District paid medical, dertal and life
insurance benefits last until the retiree reaches age 65 while coverage for the spouse lasts until the
retiree or spouse reaches aga 65, whichever comes first. All employees of the District are eligible for
the Plan If they meet the following age and service requirements: '

Teachers Age 58 and 20 years of service
Administrators & Management Age 55 and 10 years of service
Educational Support Staff Age 58 and 20 years of service

Certain retired plan members and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits are required to contribute
specified amounts monthly toward the cost of insurance premiums based on the employee group and
their retirement date.
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NOTE D - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

Membership of the Plan at July 1, 2012, the date of the latest actuarial valuation:

Relirees
Active Receiving
Employees Benefils Total
Teachers , 259 48 307
Administrators & Management 28 7 35
Educational Suppott Staff 102 - 102
Total 389 55 444

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The District's annual other post-employment benefit
(OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC), and the amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents
a level of funding that, if paid on an ongolng basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarlal fiabilitles over a’ perlod not to exceed thirty years. The fallowing table
shows the components of the District's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed
to the plan, and changes iri the District's net OPEB obligation.

Annual required contribution $ 1,343,756
interest on net OPER obligation 181,960
Adjustment to annual required contribution (227,633)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 1,298,083
Contributions made 1,247,453
Ghange In net OPEB obligation , 50,630
Net OPEB abligation - beginning of year 3,308,364
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 3,358,994

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the July 1, 2012
actuarial valuation using the projected unit.credit method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 5.5%
discount rate, (b) 4% inflation rate;, and (c) projected salary increases at 3%.

Trend Information - The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost
contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation Is as follows:

Percentage
Fiscal Annual of Annual Net
Year OPEB OPEB Cost OPEB
Ended Cost. Contributed Obligation
6/30/2014 $ 1,298,083 96.1% $ 3,358,994
6/30/2013 $ 1,295,549 122.2% $ 3,308,364
6/30/2012 $ 2,184,970 81.9% $ 3,596,160

Funded Status and Funding Progress - As of July 1, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
District's unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $11,453,631. The annual payroll for active
employees covered by the plan for the 2012 fiscal year (most recent actuarial valuation date) was
$21,103,335 a ratio of the UAAL to covered payroll of 54%.
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NOTE D - OTHER INFORMATION {Continued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan- Involve estimates of the value of reported amounts ‘and
assumgjion’s about the probability of occurrence of events far Inta the future, such as assumptions
about future terminations, mortality, and healthcare cost trends. Actuarlally determined amounts are
subject to continual revision as actuarial results are comipared with past experience and new estimates
are made aboiit the future. e

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based
on the substantive pian (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit
costs belween the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions
-used include techniques that are desighed to reduce the effect of short-term volatility in actuarial
-accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

In the July 1, 2012 actuarial valuation, lh,e’ unit credit actuarlal cost method ' was - used. The actuarial
assumptions included a rate of 5.5% to discaunt expected liabllities to the valuation date. The initial
healthcare trend rate was 10% for medical and 4% for dental, reduced by decferents o an ultimate
tate of 5% for medical and 4% for dental after nine years. The UAAL Is being amortized as an open
level dollar amount. ’

Pension Plan

Plan Description - The plan, a single-employer pension plan, is a defined benefit pension plan
established to provide benefits after early retlrement. The benefit is equal ta $20,000 arid is to be palid
at the Indlvidual's option of either a lump sum paymient or in up to five: equal gnnual payments. The plan
Is administered by tha District. Eniployees of the Distriot are eligible for the Plan if they meat the
following age and service requiremients: ’ ' '

Teachers Age 58 and 20 years of service
Administrators Age 55 and 10 years of service

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation - The District's annuel. pension costs for the year
ended June 30; 2014 and related actuarial assumptions used for the current year are as follows:

Annual required contribufion $ 82,341
Interest on net OPEB (2,072)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 2,502
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 82,861
Contributions made 44,063
Change in net OPEB obligation 38,798
OPEB obligation (asset) - beginning of year (8,606)
OPEB obligation - end of year $ 35192

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the July1, 2012
actuarial valuation using the projected unlt credit method. The actuarlal assumptions included (a) 5.5%
discount rate, (b) 4% inflation rate, and (c) projected salary increases at 3%.
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5.

Trend Information - The District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost
contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation is as follows;

Percentage Net
Fiscal Annual of Annual Pension
Year Pension Pension Cost Obligation
Ended Cost Contributed (Asset)
6/30/2014 $ 82,861 53.2% $ 35,192
6/30/2013 $ 92,719 36.7% % (37,669)
8/30/2012 $ 250,458 171.3% - $ (96,325)

Funded Status and Funding Progress - As of July 1, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the

‘District's unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $677,034. The annual payroll for active
-employees covered by the plan for the 2012 fiscal year (most recent actuarial valuation date) was

$21,103,335 a ratio of the UAAL to covered payroll of 3%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported. amounis and

assumptions about the probability of accurrence of events far into the future, such as assumptions

about future terminations, mortality, and healthcare cost trends. Actuarially determined amounts are
subject to continual revislon as actuarial results are compared with past experlence and new estimates
are made about the future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits: for financial reporting purposes are based

-on the substantive plan (the plan as- understood by the employer and plan members) and include the

types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit
costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptlons
used include techniques that are desigried to reduce the effect of short-term volatifity in actuariat
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

In the July 1, 2012 actuarial valuation, the unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a rate of 5% to discount expected liabilities to the valuation dats, The UAAL js
being amortized as an open level dollar amount.

Risk Management
The. District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of

assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the government carries commercial
insurance. The District completes an annual review of Its insurance coverage to ensure adequate
coverage.

Contingencies »
a. The District participates In a number of federal and state assisted grant programs. These programs

are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Accordingly, the
District's compliance with applicable grant requirements will be established at some future date.
The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be
determined at this time although the District expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

b. From time to time, the District is party to other various pending claims and legal proceedings.
Although the outcome of such matters cannot be forecast with certainty, it is the opirion of
management and legal counsel that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will
have a material adverse effect on the District's financial position or results of operations.
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6. Limitation on School District Revenues
Wisconsin Statutes limit the amount of tevenues. a school district may derlva from general school alds
and propérty taxes uriless a higher amount Is approved by a referendum.

This limitation does rot apply to revenue needed for payment of any general obligation' debt service
(including refinanced debt) authorized by either of the following: '

a. Arasolution of the school board or by referandum phor to August 12; 4693,
b. A raterendum on or after August 12, 1993.

7. Prior Period Adjustment
The- District determined that the food semvioe fund uriderstated unearned revenue and overstated
revenue by $42,744 In both the proprietary fund financlal statements and the district-wide financial
statements as presented in the Jume 30, 2013 Annual Financlal Report. As a result, the ending fund
balance in the food service column of the proprietary fund financial statements and ending net position
of the business-type activities. in the district-wide financial statements decreased by $42,744.
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Mequon, Wiscansin

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

General Fund - Budgetary Basls
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Revenues
Property taxes
Other local sources
Interdistrict sources
State sources
Federal sources
Other sources
Total Revenues
Expendlfures
Instruction
Regular Instruction
Vocational Ingtruction
Other instruation
Total Instruction
Support Services
Pupil services
Instructional staff services
General administration services
School admlnlstratlon services
Business services
Operatlon and mainfenance of plant
Pupll transportation services
Central services
Insurance
Other support services
Total Support Services
Debt Service
Interest and fisoal charges
Non-program
Genaeral uition paymants
Indirect costs
Total Non-program
Total Expanditures
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of capital assets
Transfers aut
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - July 1

Fund Balance - June 30

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Onginal | Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 353843,788 § 34,983,027 $ 34,983,027 $ -
1,110,967 1,110,967 1,139,346 28,379
404,776 354,776 366,498 11,722
2,424,583 2,717,187 2,706,574 (10,613)
247,982 228,079 299,175 71,096
43,000 43,000 67,389 24,389
39,676,097 39,437,036 39,562,009 124,973
16,897,026 16,685,493 16,856,949 (171,456)
675,718 661,093 634,429 26,664
2,062,342 2,068,842 2,130,389 (62,047)
10,625,984 19,414,028 19,621,767 (206,839)
1,932,721 1 925.748 1,979,566 (53.‘81__8)‘
1 325,422 1,350,486 1 432 475 (81.989)
‘678, 589 678,589 663,953 14,636
2,256, 592 2,266,592 2,225,318 31,274
604,343 504,343 500,734 3,609
4,878,406 4,929,405 5,215,931 (286,526)
1,627,174 1,550,933 1,502,648 48,285
1,226,080 1,232,080 1,206,319 26,761
317,000 317,000 257,215 59 785
778,666 778,666 - 778,666
16,625,689 15,623,842 14,984,159 539,683
78,612 - 43,612 18,721 24,891
285,057 457,799 438,714 18,085
3,000 5,000 2,296 2,704
290,057 462,799 442.010 20,789
35,620,242 35,445,181 35,066,657 3?8,523
4,054,855 3,991,855 4,495,352 503,497
2,000 2,000 1,389 (611)
(4,831 .855) (4,768,865) (4,744,957) 23,898
(4,829,856) (4,766,865) (4,743,568) 23,287
(775',000) (775,000) (248,216) 526,784
10,511,851 10,511,851 10,511,851 -
_$. 9736851 $ 9736851 % 10263635 § 526,784
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
Special Education Special Revenue Fund - Budgetary Basis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amoiints Actual Positive
Orginal | Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues '
interdistrict sources $ 31,000 § 31,000 §$ 6,939 § (24,061)
Intermediate sources 17,000 17,000 10,662 (6,338)
State sources 1,550,000 1,620,000 1,673,508 53,508
Federal sources 770,000 770,000 651,979 (118,021)
Other sources - - 9,080 9,080
Total Revenues 2,368,000 2,438,000 2,362,178 (85,822)
Expenditures
Instruction
Vogatlonal instruction 6,000 6,000 - 6,000
Speciat education instruation 5,057,078 5,067,078 4,884,747 172,331
Total Instruction 5,063,078 6,063,078 4,884,747 178,331
Support Services
Pupll services 767,058 767,058 835,487 {68:429)
Instrictionat staff servicas 260,228 267,228 291,306 (24,078)
General administration services - - 16,352 (16,362)
Pupll transportation services 525,500 525,500 535,096 (9,596)
Insutance ‘ 20,000 20,000 20,000 -
Total Support Services 1,572,786 1,579,786 1,697,241 (117,455)
Non:program ‘ _
Bpecial education tultion payments 299,394 299,394 250,549 48,845
Total Expenditures 6,935,258 6,942,258 6,832,537 109,721
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (4,567,258) (4,504,258) (4,480,359) 23,899
Other Financing Sources
Transfers In 4,667,258 4,504,258 4,480,359 (23,899)
Net Change in Fund Balance - - - - -
Fund Balarice - July 1 = - - -
Fund Balancs - June 30 $ - 3 - $ - 3 -

See Notes lo Required Supplementary Information
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Other Post Employment Benefit Plan:

MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin

Schedule of Funding Progress
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Acluarial UAAL
Accrued asa
Actuarial Liabllity Urifunded Percentage
Actuarial Value (AA) - AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation of Assels Unit Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payrall Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-2) (a/b) (c) ((b-8]/c)
7M12012.  $ 279,830 § 11733461 $ 11,453,631 2% $ 21,103,336 54%
7112010 93,032 16,951,267 16,868,235 1% 22,054,624 72%
71112008 . 17,265,775 17,255,775 0% 23,738,139 73%
Perision Plan;
Actuarial UAAL
Actrued asa
Acluarial Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value (AA) - AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation of Assals Unit Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
_Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) (b-=]/c)
MRz s - % 677034 ¥ 677,034 0% $ 21,103,336 3%
711/2010 - 1,940,391 1,940,391 0% 22,054,624 9%
7Mi2008 e 1,867,012 1,367,012 0% 23,738,139 8%

See Nates to Required Supplementary Informatlon.
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Meéguon, Wiscansin

Schedule of Employer Contributlons
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2014

Other Post Employmiant Beneftt Plan:

1 Annual Required
YéarEnded | Employer Contribution Percentage
June 30, Contributions (ARC) Contributed
2012 § 1,788,694 $  2,220.946 80%
2013 1,683,348 1,348,188 118%
2014 1,247,468 1348 766 93%
Panslon Plan:
Annual Required
Yaar Entled Employer Contribution FPercentuge
June 30, Contributions (ARC) Conftributed
2013 $ 428912 § 28605 170%
2018 34,063 91,369 37%
2014 44,063 8231 54%

Sea Nales taRequlred Supriementary Infurmation.
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Notes to Required Supplemental Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE A - GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD STATEMENT NO. 45

The District implemented GASB Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions” for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. Information for prior
years is not available.

NOTE B - SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Thete have been no changes In actuarial assumptions that have a significant effect on the amounts presented
in the schedule of funding progress for one year compared to the information presented for prior years.

NOTE € - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Operating budgets are adopted each fiscal year for all governmental funds in accordance with Section 65.90-
of the Wisconsin Statutes using the budgetary accounting procedures prasoribed by the Wisconsin
Department of Public Instruction. Budgetary expenditure cortrol is exercised at the function level. Reported
budget amounts are as originally adopted or as:amended by Board of Educatioh resolution.

The District follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected In the basic financial
statements:

Bzsed upon requests from District staff, District administration recommniends budget proposals to the
Board of Education.

The Board of Education prepares a proposed budget Including propased expenditures and the
means of financing them for the July 1 through June 30 fiscal year.

A public notice is published containing a summary of the budget and identifying the time and piace
where a public hearing will be held on the proposed budget.

Pursuant to the public budget hearing, the Board of Education may mdke slterations to the
proposed budget.

Once the Board of Education (following the public hearing) adopts the-budget, no changes may be
made n the amount of tax to be levied or in the amount of the various appropriations and the
purposes of such appropriations unless authorized by a 2/3 vote of the entire Board of Education.

Appropriations lapse at year end unless authorized as a carryover by the Board of Education. The
portion of fund balance representing carryover -appropriations Is reported as a reserved or
designated fund balance in the fund financial statements.

- Encumbrance accounting is used by the District as an extension of formal budgetary control during

the year. Encumbrances are not carried over at year end.

The DPI requires the District to separate special education revenues and expenditures from other
general fund amounts.

The District did not have any material violation of legal or contractual provisions for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2014.
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Megquon, Wisconsin
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE C - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING {Continued)

Budgetary information is derived from the annual operating budget and is presented in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, except the District adopts a separate budget for the special education special revenue
fund. An explanation of the differences between Revenues, Expenditures, and Other Financing Sources (Uses) for

budgetary funds on budgetary fund basis and a GAAP general fund basis is summarized below:

Revenues
Actual amounts (budgetary basis)

Special
General ‘Education
Fund Fund

$ 39,562,009 $ 2,352,178

Reclassification of special education 2,352,178 (2,352,178)

Total Revenues 41,914,187 _
Expenditures

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) 35,066,657 6,832,537

Reolassification of special education 6,832,637 (8,832,537)

Total Expenditures 41,899,194 -
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) 4,495,352  (4,480,359)

Reclassification of special education (4,480,359) 4,480,359

Excess.of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 14,983 ey
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) (4,743,568) 4,480,359

[Reclassification of special education 4,480,359 (4,480,359)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (263,209) -
Net Change in Fund Balance

Acfual amolnts (budgetary basis) (248,216) -
Fund Balance - July 1

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) 10,511,851 -

Fund Balance - June 30
Actual amounts (budgetary basis)
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Combining Balance Sheet
Non-Major Governmental Funds
June 30, 2014
{With summarized financial Information as of June 30, 2013)

Special
Revenue Funds. Debt Service Funds
Special . Non- Referendum Total Non-Majar
Revenue Referendum Approved Govemmerital Funds:
Trust Debt Service | Debt Service 2014 [ 2013
ASSETS '
Cash and investments $ - $ - § 261445 § 261445 § 288,610
Accouiita recelvable 28,423 - : - 28,423 111,827
TOTAL ASSETS § 28423 § - 5 261,445 § 289,868 § 400,437
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANGES
Liabilles
Accounts payable 3 879 $ -8 - % 679 § -
Due to other funds 5,637 " 4 5,637 95,734
Total Liabilitles 6,216 - - 6,216 95,734
Furid Batarices
Retireménit of long-term debt - = 261,445 261,445 288,610
Detior Intent 22,207 - - 22,207 16,093
Total Fund Balances 22,207 - 261,445 283,652 304,703
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES $ 28423 $ - $ 261445 $ 280868 $ 400437
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wiscansin
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
(With summarized financial information for the year ended June 30, 2013)

Special
Revenue Funds Debt Service Funds
Special Noti= Referendum Total Non-Major
Revenue Referendum Approved Govemmental Funds
Trust Debt Service | Debt Service 2014 | 2013
Revenues
Proparty taxes $ - § - $ 23685656 $ 2,368,556 $ 2,364,513
Other local sources 261,706 - 879 262,685 410,032
Total Revenuss 261,708 - 2,360,435 2,631,141 2,774,545
Expenditures
Instruction
‘Regular instryation 113,780 2 - 113,790 283,307
Other Instruction 49,095 - - 49,095 63,833
Total Instruction 162,885 - - 162,885 347,240
Support Sarvices
Pupll services 1,121 = - 1,121 -
Instructional staff services 54,088 = - 54,088 42,702
School administration services 37,498 - - 37,498 42,051
Total Support Services 92,707 - - 92,707 84,753
Debt Service
Principal E 215,000 2,080,000 2,295,000 2,120,000
Interest and fiscal charges - 49,508 316,600 366,198 826,225
Total Debt Service - 264,598 2,396,600 2,661,198 2,946,225
Total Expenditures 255,592 264,598 2,396,800 2,916,790 3,378,218
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) B
Expenditures 6,114 (264,598) (27,165) (285,649) (603,673)
Other Finaneing. Sourcas (Uses),
Long-term debt issued - : - - 12,640,000
Band preamium - - - - 600,938
Repayment to current note holder a - - - (13,140,000)
Transfere In - 264,598 - 264,598 343,802
Totaf Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 264,698 - 264,598 444,741
Net Change in Fund Balances 6,114 - (27,165) (21,051) (158,932)
Fund Balanges - July 1 16,093 - 288,610 304,703 463,635
Fund Balanges - June 30 $ 22,207 $ - % 261,445 $ 283,652 % 304,703
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ASSETS
Cash

LIABILITIES
Dus to student organlzations
Homesgtead High 8shoal
Lake 8hore Middla Sehoot
Donges Bay Elementary School
Oriole Lane Elementary School
Wilson Elementary School

TOTAL LIABILITIES

MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Meguon, Wisconsin
Schedule of Chartiges in Assets and Liabilities - Pupil Activity Agency Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Balance Balance
711113 Addiffons Deletions 6/30/14
$ 146,721 _$ 561,707 § 545015 § 163,413
$ 119,064 § 493,536 § 489,479 § 123,121
8 22,131 17,746 18,897
13,887 31,556 32,513 12,880
m 666 802 -
47 2,681 2,846 832
1,185 4487 1,520 1%
Eﬁ 148,721 § 551,707 § 545._01 5 § 1 53!-41 3
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ADDITIONAL INDEPENDENT AUDITORE" REPORT
FOR BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CPA¢ AND SO MUCH MORE.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the. Board of Education
Mequon-Thiensville School District
Mequon, Wiscansin

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards Issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental aciivities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the Mequon-Thiensville: School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Mequon-Thiensville School District's - basic finanoial
statements, and have issued our report thereon which included an emphasis of a-matter paragraph as indicated
on page 2 dated October 23, 2014. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial
statements of the Mequon-Thiensville Education Foundation, Inc,, as described in our report on the Mequon-
Thilensville School District's financial statements. The financial statements of the Mequon-Thiensville Education
Foundation were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Mequon-Thiensville School
District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropiiate In the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Mequon-Thiensville School District's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an. opinion on the effectiveness of the Mequon-Thiensville School
District's internal control.

A deficiéncy [n intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and cormect,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there Is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in Internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attentiop by those charged with governance.
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Our conslideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deflciencies and therefore, material weaknesses' or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal contro) that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We
did identify a certain deficiency in intemal control, deseribed in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 2014-001 that we consider to be significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obfaining reasonable assurance about whether the Mequon-Thiensville' School District's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts, Howaver, providing an’opinlon ofi compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we da not éxpress such an opinion. The resuits of
our tests disclosed no Instances of -noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards. S

Moquon-Thiensville School District's Response to Finding

The Mequon-Thlensville School Distriat's responses to.the finding identified in our audit are deseribied In the
accompanying schedule of prior year audif findings and corrective action plan. The Mequon-Thiensville School
District’s response was. not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose:of this report is solely to deseribe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
result of that testing, and not to proévide an opinion on the effectiveness of Mequon-Thiensville School District's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in consldering the Meguon-Thiensville School District's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

S det. SC

Certified Public Accountants
Sheboygan; Wisconsin
Quatober. 23, 2014
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(S

Schenck

;A-l AND 830 MUCH MORE.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL GONTROL OVER GOMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT GUIDELINES

To the Board of Educatlon
Mequon-Thiensville School District
Mequon, Wisgonsin

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited Mequon-Thiensville School District's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U. 8. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the:
State Single Audit Guidelines issued by the Wisconsin Depariment of Administration that could have a direct and
material effect on each of Mequon-Thiensville School District's major federal and state programs for the year
ended June 30, 2014. Mequon-Thiensville School District's major federal and state programs are identified in the
summary of auditors’ results seéction of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management Is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responslbility is to express an opiniars an compliance for each of Mequon-Thiensville School District's major
federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally acceptled in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, and the Stafe Single Audit Guidelines issued by the Wisconsin Department of
Administration. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Guidelines require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of com pliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct arid material effect on a major federal or state program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basls, evidence about Mequon-Thiensville School District's

compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our éudif_ provides a reasonable basls for our opinion on compliance for each major federal and
state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Mequon-Thiensville School District's
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, Mequon-Thiensville School District complied, In ali material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state
programs for the year ended June 30, 2014.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Mequon-Thiensville School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Mequon-Thiensville School District’'s internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal or
state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for éach major federal and state program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Guidelines, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Mequon-Thiensville School District's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program
on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance. is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompllance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A signlficant deficiency in internal controt over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to mefit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
complianca that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Sirigle Audit Guideliries.
Accordingly, this report is hot suitable for any othér purpose.

S e SC

Certified Public Accountants
Sheboygan, Wisconsin
October 23, 2014
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and the Schedule of State Financial Assistance
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financlal assistance include the
federal and state grant activity of the Méquon-Thiensville School District and are presented orn the accrual
basis of accounting. The information In these schedules is presented in accordance with the requirements
of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States; Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the Sfate
Single Audlt Gufdellnes Therefore, some amounts presented in these schedules may differ from amounts
presented in, or used Int the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE B - SPECIAL EDUCATION AND SCHOOL-AGE PARENTS PROGRAM
The 2013-2014 ellgible costs: under the State Speclal Education Program as reported by the District are
$6,019,529.

NOTE C - FOOD DISTRIBUTION
Nonmanetary assistance is reported in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federdl Awerds at the fair market
value of the commodities received and disbursed,

NOTE D - OVERSIGHT AGENCIES

The Wi8. Department of Education has been designated the federal oversight agency for the District. The
Wiscansin Dapartment of Public Instruction is the state oversight agency for the District.
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Meqguon, Wisconsin ’
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Erided June 30, 2014

Section [ - Summary of Auditors’ Results

Basio Financial Statements
Type of auditors' report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting;
¢ Malerial weakness(es) identified?
» Significant deficiency(ies) identified?
Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted?

Federal Awards arid State Financial Assistarice
Internal control over major programs;
« Material weakness(es) identified?
+  Significant deficlencylies) (dentified?
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordarce with Section 510(a) of Circular A-1337
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with the State Single Audit Guidelines?
|denttfication of majar federal and state programs:

Unmodified
No
Na

No
None reported
Unmodified

No
No

|  CFDA Number | Name of Federal Programs

Special Education Program Cluster
84.027 Special Education - Grants to States
84.173 Special Edugation - Preschool Grants
83.778 Medloal'Asglatance Pragram

| State ID Number | Name of State Programs

255.101 Special Education and School Age Parents
255,108 Common School Fund Library Ald

255.201 Equalization Aids

265.204 Integration Transfer - Non-Resident
266.210 High Cost Spacial Education Aid

255945 Per Pupil Aid

Audit threshold used to determine between Typs A and Typa B federal programs:

Audit thresheld used to determine between Type A and Type B state programs:
Auditée qualffiad as low-risk auditee
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Section I~ Financial Statement Findings

Finding No.

Control Deficiencies

2014-001

Condition:

Criteria:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

Management
Response:

Preparation of Annual Financial Report

Current District staff maintains accounting records which reflect the District's financial
transactions; however, preparing the Disfrict’s annual financial report, including note
disclosures, involves the selection and application of specific accounting principles whlch
would require additional experience and knowledge. The District contracts with us and our
knowledge of applicable accounting principles, financial statement formats, and fiote
disclosures to assist In the preparation of the annuat financial report in an efficient manner.

The preparation and review of the annual financlal report by staff with expertise in financial
reporting is ah internal control Intended to prevent, detect and correct a potential omission
or misstatement In the financlal statements or notes.

District management has determiined that the additional costs associated with training staff
to-become experenced In applicable accounttng principles and note disclosures outweigh
the derived benefits.

Without our-Involvement, the District may riot be able to completely prepare an annual financial
report.in’ accordance with accounting principles: generally accepted in the United States of
Ametica;

We recommend the District continue reviewing the annual financial report. While it may
not be cost beneficlal to frain additional staff to completely prepare the report, a thorough
review of. this information by appropriate staff of the District is necessary to obtain a
complete and adequate understanding of the District's annual financial report.

District management belleves that the cost of employing internal resources to draft

financial statements and related notes under the ‘GASB 34 model, including the related

GASB 34 conversion entries, would outweigh the benefits to be received. Furthermors,
District management will continue to employ personnel who have the capability to review,
approve and accept responsibility for the financial statements.
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Mequon, Wisconsin
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Section Il - Federal Award and State Flnancial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding No. Control Deficiencies

There are no federal award or state financial assistance audit findirigs and questioried costs that are required to be

réported for the year ended. June 30, 2014,
Section IV - Other Issues

Does the auditors’ report or the notes to the financial statement ipcjude
disclosure with regard to substantial doubt es ta the auditee's ability to _
continue as & golng congern? _. Yo

Does the audit report show audit issues (i.e., material non-compliarice, non-
matérial non-compliance, questioned costs, material weakness, significant
deficlency, management letter comment, excess revenue or excess reserve)
related ta grants/contracts with funding agencies that require audits fo be in
accordance with the State Single Audit Guidelines:

Department of Health Services X  Yes
Department of Public Instruction X _ Yes

Was & Managsment Latter or other document corivaying etidit comments
issued as-a result of this audit? X Yes

Name and signature of shareholder

X No
— No
“No

No

—_—

Bryan Grunewald, CPA

Date of repait Cotober 23, 2014
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MEQUON-THIENSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Megquon, Wisconsin
Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings and Corrective Action Plan
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

s,tatus of Prior Year Audit Findings

Finding 2013-01: Segregation of Duties, noted in the June 30, 2013 Schedule of Findings and Questionad
Costs, has been reported to the propsr federal and state agenciss.

Finding 2013-02: Year-end Closing and Financial Reportinig, noted In the June 30, 2013 Schedule ‘of Findings
and Questloned Cdsts have been reported to the proper federal and state agencies.

Findlrig No. Corrective Actlon Plan

2014:001 Preparation of Annual Financial Report

District management believes that the cost of employing internal resources to draft
financial statements and related notes under the GASB 34 model, Including the reiated
GASB 34 conversion entries, would otitwelgh. the benefils to be received: Furthermore,
Digtriot management will continue to employ personnel who have the capability to review,
approva and accept responsibility for the financlal statements.
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